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    As of     As of  
    December 31, 2018     September 30, 2018  
    (Unaudited)     *  

ASSETS              
Current Assets              
Cash and cash equivalents   $ 3,794,092    $ 761,351 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets     1,052,590      993,619 
Notes payable subscriptions receivable     -      150,000 
Total current assets     4,846,682      1,904,970 
               
Property and equipment, net     8,611,857      8,324,799 
               
Other assets              
Investment in equity method investees     1,598,764      1,301,166 
Investment in affiliates     2,114,161      2,076,119 
Deposits and other assets     5,995,699      165,663 
Deferred rent     1,766,487      1,442,335 
Total other assets     11,475,111      4,985,283 
               
Total Assets   $ 24,933,650    $ 15,215,052 

               
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY              

               



  
* Derived from audited information 
  
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements 
  

  
Stem Holdings, Inc.  
Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations  
  

Current liabilities              
Accounts payable and accrued expenses   $ 984,133    $ 511,007 
Due to related parties     33,600      33,600 
Convertible notes, net     168,637      2,194,790 
Short term notes and advances     1,185,741      1,268,073 
Advance from affiliate     300,000      - 
Advances to be contributed to venture     3,493,055      - 
Current portion of long-term debt     171,844      169,988 
Total Current Liabilities     6,337,010      4,177,458 
               
Long-term debt, net of short term portion     1,871,379      1,912,543 
Total Liabilities     8,208,389      6,090,001 
               
commitments and contingencies     -      - 
               
Shareholders’ Equity              
Preferred stock, Series A; $0.001 par value; 50,000,000 shares authorized, none 
outstanding as of September 30, 2018     -      - 
Preferred stock, Series B; $0.001 par value; 50,000,000 shares authorized, none 
outstanding as of September 30, 2018     -      - 
Common stock; $0.001 par value; 300,000,000 shares authorized; 14,854,487 and 
10,177,496 shares issued, issuable and outstanding as of December 31, 2018 and 
September 30, 2018 respectively     15,240      10,582 
Additional paid-in capital     31,424,366      19,809,215 
Accumulated deficit     (14,714,345)     (10,694,746)
Total equity     16,725,261      9,125,051 
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity   $ 24,933,650    $ 15,215,052 
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    For the three months ended December 31,  
    2018     2017  

             
Revenues   $ 337,952    $ 309,829 
               
Consulting fee’s     74,350      55,450 
Professional fee’s     441,872      140,598 
General and administration     858,782      432,368 
Stock based compensation     1,600,577      359,546 
Total expenses     2,975,581      987,962 
               
Operating loss   $ (2,637,629)   $ (678,133)
               
Other income and expenses              
Interest expense     (558,092)     (9,736)
Inducement cost     (823,900)       
Interest income     22      26 
Other income     -      - 
Total other income     (1,381,970)     (9,710)
               
Income (Loss) from equity method investees     -      - 
               
Net loss before income taxes     (4,019,599)     (687,843)
Provision for income taxes     -      - 
Net loss for the period   $ (4,019,599)   $ (687,843)

               
Basic and diluted loss per common share   $ (0.29)   $ (0.10)

Basic and diluted weighted average common shares outstanding     13,931,370      6,596,074 



  
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements. 
  

  
Stem Holdings, Inc.  
Unaudited Interim Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows  
  

  
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements. 
  

  
Stem Holdings, Inc. 
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    For the Three Months Ended  
    December 31,  
    2018     2017  

             
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:              
Net loss for the period   $ (4,019,599)   $ (687,843)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to cash used in operations              

Stock-based compensation     1,600,575      359,546 
Non-cash interest     382,896      3,854 
Depreciation and amortization     221,282      75,688 
Convertible notes inducement expense     823,900      - 
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:              
Prepaid expenses and other current assets     207,012      77,658 
Deferred revenue     (324,152)     (282,229)
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:              
Accounts payable and accrued expenses     473,125      (52,104)

Net Cash Flows Used In Operating Activities     (634,961)     (505,430)
               
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:              

Fixed asset purchases     (467,523)     (530,672)
Advances to related entities     (20,627)     - 
Investment in equity method investees     (300,703)     - 
Investment in affiliates     (14,310)     - 

Net Cash Flows used in Investing Activities     (803,163)     (530,672)
              
Financing Activities:              

Proceeds from advance from NVDRE     300,000      2,647,031 
Proceeds from Stem Venture funds     3,493,055      - 
Repayments of shareholder advances     -      - 
Notes payable and advances proceeds     150,000      200,000 
Proceeds from convertible notes, net of fees paid     735,000      - 
Cash paid from loan fees     (85,551)     - 
Principle payments on notes payable     (121,641)     (23,301)

Net Cash Flows Provided By Financing Activities     4,470,863      2,823,730 
               
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents     3,032,739      1,787,628 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period     761,351      391,389 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period   $ 3,794,090    $ 2,179,017 

               
Supplemental cash flow information              

Cash paid for interest   $ -    $ 1,882 
Cash paid for taxes   $ -    $ - 

Non-Cash Supplemental information              
Conversion of debt to equity   $ 2,575,000    $ 21,780 
Transfer of deposit to fixed assets   $ 40,817    $ 90,000 
Stock based compensation posted to prepaid expense   $ 975,000    $ - 
Deposit YMY stock   $ 450,000    $ - 
Deposit Yerba Oregon stock   $ 4,442,464    $ - 

Project costs paid in equity   $ 978,389    $ - 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
  

1. Incorporation and operations and Going Concern 
  

Stem Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) is a Nevada corporation incorporated on June 7, 2016. The Company purchases, improves, and leases 
properties for use in the cannabis production, distribution and sales industry as well as a cultivator providing cannabis and cannabis-infused 
products licensed under the laws of the states of Oregon, Nevada, Oklahoma, with six current licenses for cultivation, three for production, five for 
processing, one for wholesale and ten dispensary licenses. In addition, the Company also procured a hemp license under the laws of Oregon. As of 
December 31, 2018, the Company has acquired 3 commercial properties and leased a fourth property and has entered into leases to related entities 
for these four properties (see Note 10). For the quarter ended December 31, 2018 saw the near completion of buildout of these properties. 
  
The Company, through its operating subsidiaries (see below), is currently in the process of finalizing the investment in and acquisition of entities 
that engage directly in the production and sale of cannabis, moving from a real estate focused entity with a cannabis niche to a cannabis focused 
entity. 
  
The Company has incorporated 6 new subsidiaries –Stem Group Oklahoma, Inc., Stem Holdings Florida, Inc. Stem Holdings Oregon, Inc., Stem 
Holdings IP, Inc., Opco, LLC, and Stem Agri, LLC. 
  
The Company’s stock is publicly traded and is listed on the Canadian Securities Exchange under the symbol “STEM” and the OTCQB exchange 
under the symbol “STMH”. 
  
Going Concern 
  
These unaudited financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which assumes that the Company will be able to realize its 
assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. While the recreational use of cannabis is legal under the laws of certain States, 
where the Company is currently finalizing the acquisition of entities or investment in entities that directly produce or sell cannabis, the use and 
possession of cannabis is illegal under United States Federal law for any purpose, by way of Title II of the Comprehensive Drug Abuse Prevention 
and Control Act of 1970, otherwise known as the Controlled Substances Act of 1970 (the “ACT”). Cannabis is currently included under Schedule 1 
of the Act, making it illegal to cultivate, sell or otherwise possess in the United States. 
  
On January 4, 2018 the office of the Attorney General published a memo regarding cannabis enforcement that rescinds directives promulgated under 
former President Obama that eased federal enforcement. In a January 8, 2018 memo, Jefferson B. Sessions, then Attorney General of the United 
States, indicated enforcement decisions will be left up to the U.S. Attorney’s in their respective states clearly indicating that the burden is with 
“federal prosecutors deciding which cases to prosecute by weighing all relevant considerations, including federal law enforcement priorities set 
by the Attorney General, the seriousness of the crime, the deterrent effect of federal prosecution, and the cumulative impact of particular crimes 
on the community.” Subsequently, in April 2018, President Trump promised to support congressional efforts to protect states that have legalized 
the cultivation, sale and possession of cannabis, however, a bill has not yet been finalized in order to implement legislation that would, in effect, 
make clear the federal government cannot interfere with states that have voted to legalize cannabis. Further in December 2018, the US Congress 
passed legislation, which the President signed on December 20, 2018, removing hemp from being included with Cannabis in Schedule I of the Act. 
  
These conditions raise substantial doubt as to the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern should it complete its acquisitions and 
investments, which it considers likely as of the date of these financial statements. Should the United States Federal Government choose to begin 
enforcement of the provisions under the Act, the Company through its wholly owned subsidiaries could be prosecuted under the Act and the 
Company may have to immediately cease operations and/or be liquidated upon their closing of the acquisition or investment in entities that engage 
directly in the production and or sale of cannabis. 
  
The financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts, or amount and 
classification of liabilities that might result from this uncertainty. 
  

  
2. Summary of significant accounting policies 
  
Basis of preparation  
  
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America (“GAAP”). The condensed financial statements included herein are unaudited. Such financial statements, in the opinion of 
management, contain all adjustments necessary to present fairly the financial position and results of operations as of and for the periods indicated. 
All such adjustments are of a normal recurring nature. These interim results are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the year 
ending September 30, 2019 or for any other period. Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in the financial statements 
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States have been condensed or omitted pursuant to the rules 
and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission, and because of this, for further information, readers should refer to the financial 
statements and footnotes included in its Form 10 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018 filed on January 14, 2019. The Company believes that 
the disclosures are adequate to make the interim information presented not misleading. 
  
Principals of Consolidation  
  
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Stem Holdings, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Stem Group 
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Oklahoma, Inc., Stem Holdings Florida, Inc., Stem Holdings Oregon, Inc., Stem Holdings IP, Inc., Opco, LLC., and Stem Agri, LLC. All material 
intercompany accounts, transactions, and profits have been eliminated in consolidation. Our wholly owned subsidiaries had no operations, assets 
or liabilities as of December 31, 2018. 
  
Revenue Recognition  
  
The Company recognizes rental revenue from tenants, including rental abatements, lease incentives and contractual fixed increases attributable to 
operating leases, on a straight-line basis over the term of the related leases when collectability is reasonably assured. 
  
The Company makes estimates of the collectability of its tenant receivables related to base rents, straight-line rent and other revenues. In the 
current fiscal year, the Company began significant rental operations. The Company considers such things as historical bad debts, tenant 
creditworthiness, current economic trends, facility operating performance, lease structure, developments relevant to a tenant’s business, and 
changes in tenants’ payment patterns in its analysis of accounts receivable and its evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful 
accounts. Specifically, for straight-line rent receivables, the Company’s assessment includes an estimation of a tenant’s ability to fulfill its rental 
obligations over the remaining lease term. 
  
Real Estate Acquisition Valuation  
  
All assets acquired and liabilities assumed in an acquisition of real estate are measured at their acquisition date fair values. The acquisition value of 
land, building and improvements are included in real estate investments on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Acquisition pursuit 
costs associated with asset acquisitions are capitalized. The Company has early adopted ASU 2017-01, which clarifies the definition of a business 
with the objective of adding guidance to assist entities with evaluating whether transactions should be accounted for as businesses acquisitions. 
As a result of early adopting ASU 2017-01, real estate acquisitions did not meet the definition of a business combination and were deemed asset 
acquisitions, and the Company therefore capitalized its acquisition pursuit costs associated with these acquisitions. 
  

  
Reclassifications  
  
Certain amounts in the Company’s consolidated financial statements for prior periods have been reclassified to conform to the current period 
presentation. These reclassifications have not changed the results of operations of prior periods. 
  
Use of estimates  
  
The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of 
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Estimates and judgments used are based on management’s 
experience and the assumptions used are believed to be reasonable given the circumstances that exist at the time the financial statements are 
prepared. The significant estimates included in these financial statements are those associated with the assumptions used to value equity 
instruments, valuation of its properties for impairment testing and the deferral of rents. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

  
Instruments to Purchase Common Stock and Other Derivative Financial Instruments  
  
We classify as equity any contracts that require physical settlement or net-share settlement or provide us a choice of net-cash settlement or 
settlement in our own shares (physical settlement or net-share settlement) provided that such contracts are indexed to our own stock. We classify 
as assets or liabilities any contracts that require net-cash settlement (including a requirement to net cash settle the contract if an event occurs and if 
that event is outside our control) or give the counterparty a choice of net-cash settlement or settlement in shares (physical settlement or net-share 
settlement). We assess the classification of instruments issued to purchase our common stock and any other financial instrument at each reporting 
date to determine whether a change in classification between assets and liabilities is required. 
  
Cash and cash equivalents  
  
Cash and cash equivalents include short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less and are recorded at cost, which 
approximates fair market value given the short-term nature. 
  
Concentrations of Credit Risk  
  
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash and our deferred 
rents. As of December 31, 2018, the Company had deposits in a major financial institution in excess of the FDIC insurance limit. The Company 
believes the risk of loss to be minimal as it maintains its cash balances at well capitalized financial institutions. As of December 31, 2018, the 
Company had deferrals of rent due to free rent periods of approximately $1.8 million as it completes the buildout of three of its properties, which is 
expected to be finalized for all of the Company properties in the upcoming quarter ended March 31, 2019, at which time the Company will derive 
payment of rents from all of its properties. The Company is currently in the process of acquiring the entities that it currently rents to and believes as 
of the date of these financial statements that it will acquire those entities (see Note 10). 
  
Geographical Concentrations 
  
As of December 31, 2018, the Company primarily rents to entities engaged in the production and sale of cannabis, which is only legal for 
recreational use in 10 states, with lesser legalization, such as for medical use in an additional 21 states, as of the time of these financial statements. 
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Carrying value, recoverability and impairment of long-lived assets  
  
The Company follows Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC’) 360 to evaluate its long-lived 
assets with determinate lives. The Company’s long-lived assets, which include property and equipment, are reviewed for impairment whenever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. The Company does not test for 
impairment in the year of acquisition of properties so long as those properties are acquired from unrelated third parties. 
  
The Company assesses the recoverability of its long-lived assets by comparing the projected undiscounted net cash flows associated with the 
related long-lived asset or group of long-lived assets over their remaining estimated useful lives against their respective carrying amounts. 
Impairment, if any, is based on the excess of the carrying amount over the fair value of those assets. Fair value is generally determined using the 
assets expected future discounted cash flows or market value, if readily determinable. If long- lived assets are determined to be recoverable, but the 
newly determined remaining estimated useful lives are shorter than originally estimated, the net book values of the long-lived assets are depreciated 
and amortized over the newly determined remaining estimated useful lives. 

  
The Company considers the following to be some examples of important indicators that may trigger an impairment review: (i) significant under-
performance or losses of assets relative to expected historical or projected future operating results; (ii) significant changes in the manner or use of 
assets or in the Company’s overall strategy with respect to the manner or use of the acquired assets or changes in the Company’s overall business 
strategy; (iii) significant negative industry or economic trends; (iv) increased competitive pressures; (v) a significant decline in the Company’s 
stock price for a sustained period of time; and (vi) regulatory changes. The Company evaluates assets for potential impairment indicators at least 
annually and more frequently upon the occurrence of such events. 
  
Capitalization of Project Costs  
  
The Company’s policy is to capitalize all costs that are directly identifiable with a specific property, would be capitalized if the Company had already 
acquired the property, and when the property, or an option to acquire the property, is being actively sought after, and either funds are available or 
will likely become available in order to exercise their option. All amounts shown capitalized prior to acquisition of a property are included under the 
caption of Project Costs within the “Deposits and other assets” line item in the balance sheet. 
  
Income Taxes  
  
Income taxes are provided for the tax effects of transactions reported in the financial statements and consist of currently due plus deferred taxes. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between financial reporting carrying amounts and the respective tax bases of 
assets and liabilities and are measured using tax rates and laws that are expected to be in effect when the differences are expected to be recovered or 
settled. Valuation allowances are provided against deferred tax assets if it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will not be realized. 
  
The Company follows the guidance of FASB ASC 740-10 which relates to the Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, which seeks to reduce 
the diversity in practice associated with the accounting and reporting for uncertainty in income tax positions. This interpretation prescribes a 
comprehensive model for financial statement recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of uncertain tax positions taken or expected to 
be taken in income tax returns. 
  
Fair value of financial instruments  
  
As defined in the authoritative guidance, fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 
  
To estimate fair value, the Company utilizes market data or assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including 
assumptions about risk and the risks inherent in the inputs to the valuation technique. These inputs can be readily observable, market corroborated 
or generally unobservable. 
  

  
The authoritative guidance establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest 
priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (“Level 1” measurements) and the lowest priority to 
unobservable inputs (“Level 3” measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows: 
  
Level 1 — Observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets at the measurement date for identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities. 
  
Level 2 — Other inputs that are observable, directly or indirectly, such as quoted prices in markets that are not active, or inputs which are 
observable, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the asset or liability. 
  
Level 3 — Unobservable inputs for which there is little or no market data and which the Company makes its own assumptions about how market 
participants would price the assets and liabilities. 
  
In instances in which multiple levels of inputs are used to measure fair value, hierarchy classification is based on the lowest level input that is 
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significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. The Company’s assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value 
measurement in its entirety requires judgment and considers factors specific to the asset or liability. 
  
Beneficial Conversion Feature 
  
The Company issued convertible notes that have conversion prices that create an embedded beneficial conversion feature on the issuance date. A 
beneficial conversion feature exists on the date a convertible note is issued when the fair value of the underlying common stock to which the note is 
convertible into is in excess of the remaining unallocated proceeds of the note after first considering the allocation of a portion of the note proceeds 
to the fair value of any attached equity instruments, if any related equity instruments were granted with the debt, on a relative fair market basis. The 
Company estimates the fair value of its common stock using the most recent selling price available. The intrinsic value of the beneficial conversion 
feature is recorded as a debt discount with a corresponding amount to additional paid-in capital. The debt discount is amortized to interest expense 
over the life of the note using the effective interest method. 
  
Earnings per share  
  
The Company presents basic and diluted per share amounts (“EPS”) data for its common shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or 
loss attributable to common shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. 
Diluted loss per share is calculated based on the weighted-average number of outstanding common shares plus the effect of dilutive potential 
common shares, using the treasury stock method. The Company’s calculation of diluted net loss per share excludes potential common shares as of 
December 31, 2018 as the effect would be anti-dilutive (i.e. would reduce the loss per share). 
  
As of December 31, 2018, the Company has 4,685,298 shares issuable upon note conversion, options and warrants exercisable into the common 
stock of the Company outstanding. 
  
Advertising Costs  
  
The Company follows the policy of charging the cost of advertising to expense as incurred. Advertising expense was $ 5,903 for the three months 
ended December 31, 2018 and $9,380 for the three months ended December 31, 2017. 
  
Emerging Growth Company  
  
The Company has elected to be an emerging growth company as defined under the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 (“Jobs Act”). 
Included with this election, the Company has also elected to use the provisions within the Jobs Act that allow companies that go public to continue 
to use the private company adoption date rules for new accounting policies. Should the Company obtain revenues in excess of $1 billion on an 
annual basis, have its non-affiliated market capitalization increase to over $700 million as of the last day of its second quarter, or raise in excess of $1 
billion in public offerings of its equity or instruments directly convertible into its equity, it will forfeit its status under the Jobs Act as an emerging 
growth company. 
  

  
Property and Equipment  
  
Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and is depreciated using the straight-line method over the assets’ estimated 
useful life as follows: 
  

  
Normal maintenance and repairs for equipment are charged to expense as incurred, while significant improvements are capitalized. 
  
Related parties  
  
Parties are considered to be related to the Company if the parties, directly or indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, control, are controlled 
by, or are under common control with the Company. Related parties also include principal owners of the Company, its management, members of the 
immediate families of principal owners of the Company and its management and other parties with which the Company may deal with if one party 
controls or can significantly influence the management or operating policies of the other to an extent that one of the transacting parties might be 
prevented from fully pursuing its own separate interests. 
  
Recent Accounting Guidance 
  
On August 29, 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-15, Intangibles - Goodwill and Other - Internal-Use Software (Subtopic 350-40): Customer’s 
Accounting for Implementation Costs Incurred in a Cloud Computing Arrangement that is a Service Contract (“ASU 2018-15”), which align the 
requirements for capitalizing implementation costs incurred in a hosting arrangement that is a service contract with the requirements for capitalizing 
implementation costs incurred to develop or obtain internal-use software (and hosting arrangements that include an internal use software license). 
ASU 2018-15 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019 and interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption of the 
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Buildings 20 years
Leasehold improvements Shorter of term of lease or economic life of improvement
Furniture and equipment 5 years
Signage 5 years
Software and related 5 years



amendments is permitted including adoption in any interim period. The amendments in ASU 2018-15 should be applied either retrospectively or 
prospectively to all implementation costs incurred after the date of adoption. We are currently evaluating the impact of this standard on our 
consolidated financial statements, including accounting policies, processes, and systems. 
  
On August 28, 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-13, Fair Value Measurement: Disclosure Framework - Changes to the Disclosure Requirements 
for Fair Value Measurement (“ASU 2018-13”), which changes the fair value measurement disclosure requirements of ASC 820. ASU 2018-13 is 
effective for all entities for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019, including interim periods therein. Early adoption is permitted for any 
eliminated or modified disclosures upon issuance of ASU 2018-13. We are currently evaluating the impact of this standard on our consolidated 
financial statements, including accounting policies, processes, and systems. 
  
In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-07, Compensation - Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to Nonemployee Share-Based 
Payment Accounting (“ASU 2018-07”). ASU 2018-07 expands the guidance in Topic 718 to include share-based payments for goods and services to 
non-employees and generally aligns it with the guidance for share-based payments to employees. The amendments are effective for fiscal years 
beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods within that fiscal year. We are currently evaluating the impact of this standard on our 
consolidated financial statements, including accounting policies, processes, and systems. 
  
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The standard provides companies with a single model 
for use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers and will replace most existing revenue recognition guidance in U.S. GAAP 
when it becomes effective, including industry-specific revenue guidance. The standard specifically excludes lease contracts. The ASU allows for 
the use of either the full or modified retrospective transition method and will be effective for the Company on October 1, 2019, at which time the 
Company expects to adopt the updated standard using the modified retrospective approach. However, as the majority of the Company’s revenue is 
from rental income related to leases, the ASU will not have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements. Related disclosures will be 
provided and/or updated pursuant to the requirements of the ASU. 
  

  
In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases. The standard amends the existing lease accounting guidance and requires lessees to 
recognize a lease liability and a right-of-use asset for all leases (except for short-term leases that have a duration of one year or less) on their balance 
sheets. Lessees will continue to recognize lease expense in a manner similar to current accounting. For lessors, accounting for leases under the new 
guidance is substantially the same as in prior periods, but eliminates current real estate-specific provisions and changes the treatment of initial 
direct costs. Entities are required to use a modified retrospective approach for leases that exist or are entered into after the beginning of the earliest 
comparable period presented, with an option to elect certain transition relief. Full retrospective application is prohibited. The standard will be 
effective for the Company on October 1, 2020; however, early adoption of the ASU is permitted. While the Company is currently evaluating the 
effect that the updated standard will have on our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures, we expect to adopt the guidance on its 
effective date, at which time we anticipate recognizing right-of-use assets and related lease liabilities on our consolidated balance sheets related to 
ground leases for any communities where we are the lessee. 
  
In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial 
Instruments (“ASU 2016-13”). ASU 2016-13 provides guidance for recognizing credit losses on financial instruments based on an estimate of current 
expected credit losses model. The amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. We are currently evaluating the 
impact of this standard on our consolidated financial statements, including accounting policies, processes, and systems. 
  
In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) (“ASU 2016-02”). ASU 2016-02 requires that lessees recognize assets and 
liabilities for leases with lease terms greater than twelve months in the statement of financial position and also requires improved disclosures to help 
users of financial statements better understand the amount, timing and uncertainty of cash flows arising from leases. The FASB issued subsequent 
amendments to improve and clarify the implementation guidance of Topic 842. The amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning after 
December 15, 2018. We are currently evaluating the impact of this standard on our consolidated financial statements, including accounting policies, 
processes, and systems. 
  
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). The core principle of this amendment is that 
an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to 
which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services. The FASB issued subsequent amendments to improve and clarify 
the implementation guidance of Topic 606. This standard is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017. We are 
currently evaluating the impact of this standard on our consolidated financial statements, including accounting policies, processes, and systems. 
  
3. Property, Plant & Equipment 
  
Property and equipment consisted of the following: 
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    December 31, 2018     September 30, 2018  
Automobile   $ 18,275    $ 18,275 
Signage     19,118      19,118 
Furniture and equipment     1,258,937      1,199,303 
Leasehold improvements     2,894,367      2,718,519 
Buildings and property improvements     4,992,600      4,719,742 
Land     300,000      300,000 
Software and related     58,518      58,518 

               



  

  
On November 1, 2016, the Company acquired certain real property located at 1027 Willamette Street, Eugene, OR 97401 (the “Property”) for a total 
cash purchase price plus closing costs of approximately $918,000. 
  
On February 6, 2017, the Company acquired certain real property located at 7827 SE Powell Blvd, Portland, OR 97206 (the “Property”) for a total 
purchase price plus closing costs of approximately $656,498. 
  
In January 2018, the Company acquired certain property located at 14336 South Union Hall Road, Mulino Oregon 97042 for a total purchase price of 
approximately $1,555,500 which includes credits issued by the seller for prior rental payments and additional improvements on the property made by 
the Company. As part of the consideration for the purchase, the Company issued the seller a note for $1.2 million with a 2% interest rate and 
monthly payments beginning in July 2018 of $13,500 for a period of 19 months with a final balloon payment payable in January 2020 of 
approximately $957,000. The Company did not record a premium to the market rate of the note as it was immaterial at issuance. 

  
Depreciation and amortization expense was $221,282 for the three months ended December 31, 2018 and $75,688 for the three months ended 
December 31, 2017. 

  
4. Deposits and other assets 
  
Other long-term assets consisted of the following as of: 
  

  
In October 2018, the Company entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement (“APA”) to acquire certain assets and assume certain liabilities of Yerba 
Oregon, LLC. The purchase price for the assets and assumption of liabilities is the greater of $4.613 million or multiples of 2018 and 2019 EBITDA of 
Yerba Oregon LLC, as required under the APA. Payment of the purchase price is as follows upon successful closing of the APA: $350,000 in cash at 
closing, a promissory note in the amount of $400,000 and the remainder in common shares of the Company based on the lesser of 85% of the 
average closing price of the stock as traded in the over the counter market 30 days prior to closing or $2.40 per share. The Company deposited into 
escrow with an attorney, upon signing the APA, 1,931,506 shares of its common stock, which were valued at $4,442,464. Closing of the APA is 
subject to certain requirements, including the issuance of state and local licenses, which is outside the control of the Company and the seller, which 
as of the date of these financial statements, had yet to be issued. Yerba Oregon, LLC operates a wholesale cannabis production and sales operation 
in the state of Oregon. 
  
In November and December 2018, the Company determined that Milestone’s 2 and 3 had been reached within the Multi-Party agreement (see note 
10) and therefore had issued 457,191 shares of its common stock, with a valuation of $978,883, in satisfaction of the requirement to issue common 
shares covering 20% of the cash expended by the seller to purchase and improve the property and is currently negotiating with the owner of the 
property, a director of the Company, in regards to an allocation of cash and mortgage principal in satisfaction of the purchase price of $4.395 million 
required, which the Company expects to close on in March 2019. This is included in Project Costs. 
  

  
In November 2018, the Company issued 187,500 shares of its common stock, valued at $450,000, to acquire an option from the investors in YMY 
Ventures, LLC (see Note 6) and NVD RE (see Note 5) to (1) purchase a property comprised of a land and building near Las Vegas, NV and (2) 
acquire the remaining 50% of YMY Ventures, LLC held by the option issuers and (3) to acquire 37.5% of NVD RE owned by the option issuers. The 
Company allocated the $450,000 for the option as $56,500 to acquire the land and building and has included that amount with Project Costs, 
$337,500 to acquire the remaining 50% of YMY Ventures, LLC to Investment in Investee Purchase Agreement above and $56,500 to acquire the 25% 
of NVD RE held by the option issuers to Investment in Investee Purchase Agreement above. 
  
5. Investment in equity method investees 

  
In April 2018, the Company received a 37.5% interest in NVD RE Corp. (“NVD”) upon its issuance to NVD of a commitment to contribute $1.275 
million to NVD. As of December 31, 2018, the Company had not only fully funded its commitment, but invested an additional $300,000 thousand in 
capital. NVD used the funds provided to date by the Company to acquire an under construction cannabis indoor grow building located near Las 
Vegas, Nevada and to continue the buildout of the property. The Company has no further commitment to fund the entity beyond its initial equity 
purchase commitment. NVD will lease its facilities upon completion to YMY Ventures, LLC (see Note 5). 

  

Subtotal     9,541,815      9,033,475 
               
Accumulated depreciation and amortization     (929,958)    (708,676)

Property, plant and equipment, net   $ 8,611,857    $ 8,324,799 
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    December 31, 2018     September 30, 2018  
Project costs   $ 1,044,639    $ 10,000 
Investment in investee purchase agreement     393,750      - 
Deposits     114,846      155,662 
Escrow shares for acquisition     4,442,464      - 
    $ 5,995,699    $ 165,662 
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For the period from acquisition through December 31, 2018, NVD had only minimal startup and buildout operations, which were not apportioned to 
these financials statements as of December 31, 2018 due to immateriality. In the three months ended December 31, 2018, NVD obtained $300,000 in 
proceeds from a mortgage on its property. The funds from this mortgage were advanced to the Company. The advance is undocumented, non-
interest bearing and due on demand. 
  
6. Due from Affiliates 
  
In September 2018, the Company entered into an agreement to acquire 50% of the membership interest of YMY Ventures LLC (“YMY”). YMY is a 
startup operation located near Las Vegas, Nevada and owns a license for the production and sale of cannabis. The purchase price for the 50% 
interest is $750,000 with the first $375,000 paid into escrow upon signing, with the final $375,000 due upon closing, which under the agreement 
occurs when the license is transferred by the Nevada Department of Taxation and receipt of approval in transfer of ownership by the Division of 
Public and Behavioral Health of the City of North Las Vegas. 
  
As of December 31, 2018, the Company had funded the $375,000 into escrow and had provided the joint venture with additional funds primarily in 
the form of payments for work performed to acquire the license from the Nevada Department of Taxation in the amount of approximately $215,429. 
  
As of December 31, 2018 and the date of these financial statements, neither the license nor the transfer of membership interest had been issued or 
approved, however, the Company believes the license and transfer will be granted in FY 2019. In the event that no license is approved for transfer 
then the agreement automatically unwinds and the Company will receive the funds held in escrow and will have a claim for refund against YMY for 
amounts paid to obtain the license. Because of the automatic unwinding of the agreement in the event that the license grant or membership transfer 
are not approved, which are both outside the control of the Company and YMY, this has not been recorded as an equity method investment as of 
December 31, 2018, but as a due from affiliate. In the event of the failure of the license to be transferred, approximately $215,000 of the Company’s 
investment is at risk. 

  
In July 2018, the Company entered into an agreement to acquire a 25% interest in East Coast Packers LLC (“ECP”) for the purchase price of $1.5 
million, payable in the amount of $500,000 in cash at closing and a note for $1 million. All amounts are payable to ECP. At the time of closing, ECP 
was a dormant Florida LLC, but owned a citrus fruit dealer license active for the 2015-2016 growing season. This qualified ECP under newly enacted 
legislation in the state of Florida to apply for a license to produce and sell medical cannabis. Until such time as ECP is granted a medical cannabis 
license, the $500,000 paid into ECP may only be expended by ECP in acquiring a medical cannabis license. As of December 31, 2018 and the date of 
these financial statements, no license had been granted, however, the Company believes the license will be issued in FY 2019. In the event that ECP 
is unable to obtain the medical license, the agreement unwinds in full, the membership interest is returned to the seller and all amounts paid in not 
expended on the acquisition of the license are to be refunded to the Company along with cancellation of the $1 million note. Because the issuance 
of the license is outside the control of the Company and ECP and because the agreement unwinds in full in the event the license is not issued, this 
has not been recorded as an equity method investment as of December 31, 2018, but as a due from affiliate. In the event of the failure to obtain the 
license the approximately $500,000 cash investment is at risk. 
  

  
7. Notes Payable and Advances 
  
Equipment financing 
  
In November 2017, the Company entered into a promissory note in the amount of $21,749 from a vendor of the Company to finance the acquisition 
of a security electronics system in one of its properties. The promissory note bears an interest rate of 18% per annum and also contains a 10% 
servicing fee. The note matures 24 months after issuance and is secured by certain security electronics purchased with proceeds of the note. This 
vendor is currently in a restructuring and is likely to go out of business. As of December 31, 2018, the Company has been notified that the vendor 
holding the note is in bankruptcy and during the quarter ended December 31, 2018, the Company withheld payment under the note. The obligation 
remains outstanding at $14,950 as of December 31, 2018. This is included in current portion of long-term debt and long-term debt line items in the 
balance sheet. 
  
Effective April 29, 2018, the Company entered into a 36-month premium finance agreement in consideration for a John Deere Gator Tractor in the 
principal amount of $15,710. The note bears no annual interest rate and requires the Company to make thirty-six monthly payments of $442 over the 
term of the note. As of December 31, 2018, the obligation outstanding is $12,389. No amount was recorded for the premium for the non-interest 
bearing feature of the note as it was immaterial. The note is secured by the equipment financed. This is included in current portion of long-term debt 
and long-term debt line items in the balance sheet. 
  
Effective May 29, 2018, the Company entered into a 24-month premium finance agreement in consideration for a MT85 wide track loader in the 
principal amount of $27,844. The note bears no annual interest rate and requires the Company to make 24 monthly payments of $1,160 over the term 
of the note. As of December 31, 2018, the obligation outstanding is $20,883. No amount was recorded for the premium for the non-interest bearing 
feature of the note as it was immaterial. The note is secured by the equipment financed. This is included in current portion of long-term debt and 
long-term debt line items in the balance sheet. 
  
Due to related parties 
  
As of December 31, 2018, related parties had advanced cash and equipment, on a due on demand, unsecured and undocumented basis, to the 
Company in the amount of $33,600. 
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Insurance financing 
  
In February 2018, the Company entered into a 10-month premium finance agreement in partial consideration for an insurance policy in the principal 
amount of $252,445. The note bears an annual interest rate of 5.75% and requires the Company to make ten monthly payments of $22,105 over the 
term of the note. As of December 31, 2018, the obligation has been satisfied. 
  
Effective March 2, 2018, the Company entered into a 10-month premium finance agreement in partial consideration for an insurance policy in the 
principal amount of $14,390. The note bears an annual interest rate of 5.75% and requires the Company to make ten monthly payments of $904 over 
the term of the note. As of December 31, 2018, the obligation has been satisfied. 
  
Effective July 31, 2018, the Company entered into a 9-month premium finance agreement in partial consideration for an insurance policy in the 
principal amount of $54,701.55. The note bears an annual interest rate of 7.99% and requires the Company to make nine monthly payments of $4,435 
over the term of the note. As of December 31, 2018, the obligation outstanding is $17,741. This is included in the short term notes and advances line 
item in the balance sheet. 
  

  
Short-term notes and advances 
  
In September 2018, an investor interested in the then ongoing private placement of convertible notes (see below) advanced the Company $168,000 
on an unsecured basis and then entered discussions with Company regarding the form of the note. As of December 31, 2018, the Company and the 
investor had not come to terms and the investor did not agree to the terms of the notes. The Company has treated the amount as an unsecured 
advance, due on demand. As of December 31, 2018 and the date of these financial statements, no demand had been made and the Company 
continues to negotiate with the investor. 
  
In November 2018, a board member of the Company and several outside investors provided the Company with approximately $3.493 million in cash 
to be dispensed to an entity being setup by the investors with assistance from the Company, and which has yet to open a checking account, which 
will be primarily owned and controlled by the board member, upon that entity completing its setup and opening up of a checking account. The 
Company is currently treating the amounts tendered as undocumented advances, due on demand and non-interest bearing. The Company expects 
that the new venture will be setup in the near term and has therefore not recorded a premium or discount associated with the funds advanced as 
they would be immaterial. 
  
As disclosed in Note 5, the Company entered into a promissory note in the principal amount of $1 million payable to ECP as part of its investment in 
the LLC. The promissory is payable in five installments commencing upon the effective date (the date of grant of license to engage in cannabis 
operations issuable by the government of the State of Florida), over the course of 1 year, with an interest rate of 1% per annum for the first six 
months, then increasing to 5.5% per annum for the remainder of the note period through maturity. In the event the LLC is denied the licenses 
necessary to operate, the note is cancelled in full. 
  
Mortgages payable 
  
On February 28, 2018, the Company executed a $550,000 mortgage payable on the Willamette property to acquire additional funds. The mortgage 
bears interest at 15% per annum. Monthly interest only payments began March 1, 2018 and continue each month thereafter until paid. The entire 
unpaid balance is due on March 1, 2020, the maturity date of the mortgage, and is secured by the underlying property. The Company paid costs of 
approximately $28,000 to close on the mortgage. The mortgage terms do not allow participations by the lender in either the appreciation in the fair 
value of the mortgaged real estate project or the results of operations of the mortgaged real estate project. The note has been cross guaranteed by 
the CEO and Director of the Company. This is included in the long-term debt line item in the balance sheet. 
  
On April 4, 2018, the Company executed a $314,000 mortgage payable on the Powell property to acquire additional funds. At closing $75,000 of the 
proceeds was put into escrow. The mortgage bears interest at 15% per annum. Monthly interest only payments began May 1, 2018 and continue 
each month thereafter until paid. The entire unpaid balance is due on April 1, 2020, the maturity date of the mortgage, and is secured by the 
underlying property. The Company plaid costs of approximately $19,000 to close on the mortgage. The mortgage terms do not allow participations 
by the lender in either the appreciation in the fair value of the mortgaged real estate project or the results of operations of the mortgaged real estate 
project. The note has been cross guaranteed by the CEO and Director of the Company. This is included in the long-term debt line item in the 
balance sheet. 
  
On January 16, 2018 the Company consummated a “Contract for Sale” for a Farm Property in Mulino OR (the “Mulino Property”). The purchase 
price was $1,700,000 which was reduced by a rental credit of approximately $135,000 which is equivalent to nine months’ rent at $15,000 a month and 
an additional credit of $9,500 for additional work done on the property. In connection with the purchase of the property, the Company made a cash 
payment as down payment plus payment of closing costs in the amount of $370,637 and issued a promissory note in the amount of $1,200,000 with a 
maturity of January 2020. The Company will pay monthly installments of principal and interest (at a rate of 2% per annum) in the amount of $13,500, 
commencing in July 2018 through the maturity date (January 2020), at which time the entire unpaid principal balance and any remaining accrued 
interest shall be due and payable in full. No amount was recorded for the premium for the below market rate feature of the note as it was immaterial. 
The note is secured by a deed of trust on the property. The Company performed an analysis and determined that the rate obtained was below 
market, however, no premium was recorded as the Company determined it was immaterial. This is included in the long-term debt and current portion 
of long-term debt line items in the balance sheet. 
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8. Convertible debt 

  
During the three months ended December 31, 2018, the Company issued to holders of then outstanding convertible notes, a time limited incentive in 
the form of a reduction in the conversion prices of the notes held to $1.80, in order to induce the holders to convert their notes. In October and 
November 2018, holders of $100,000 in principal of short term convertible notes, $975,000 in principal of 6 month convertible notes and $1.5 million in 
principal 12 month convertible notes agreed to convert the principal amounts outstanding in full and for which as of December 31, 2018, the 
Company had issued 958,335 shares of its common stock and had an additional 472,221 common shares issuable as of December 31, 2018 in 
satisfaction of the conversions. The inducement expense recorded for the three months ended December 31, 2018 was approximately $824,000. 
  
On December 27, 2018, the Company entered into an Agency Agreement with respect to a private offering of up to 10,000 special warrants of the 
Company (the “CD Special Warrants”) for aggregate gross proceeds of up to $10,000,000 (in Canadian funds, denoted herein as “C”) (the 
“Offering”). In addition, on December 27, 2018, the Company closed the first tranche of the Offering and was notified that the following week a 
second closing would occur, consisting in total of 3,121 CD Special Warrants at a price of C$1,000 per CD Special Warrant for aggregate gross 
proceeds of C$3,121,000. Proceeds received in December 2018, were primarily investors who were United States based which were $735,000 
(approximately C$980,000) with the remaining proceeds (C$2,141,000) in the second tranche primarily from Canadian investors received the first week 
of January 2019.  
  
Each CD Special Warrant will be exchanged (with no further action on the part of the holder thereof and for no further consideration) for one 
convertible debenture unit of the Company (a “Convertible Debenture Unit”), on the earlier of: (i) the third business day after the date on which 
both (A) a receipt (the “Receipt”) for a (final) prospectus (the “Qualification Prospectus”) qualifying the distribution of the Convertible Debentures 
(as defined below) and Warrants (as defined below) issuable upon exercise of the CD Special Warrants has been issued by the applicable securities 
regulatory authorities in the Canadian jurisdictions in which purchasers of the CD Special Warrants are resident (the “Canadian Jurisdictions”), and 
(B) a registration statement (the “Registration Statement”) registering the resale of the common shares underlying the Convertible Debentures and 
Warrants has been declared effective by the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Registration”); and (ii) the date that is six months 
following the closing of the Offering. The Company has also provided certain registration rights to purchasers of the CD Special Warrants. 
  
Each Convertible Debenture Unit is comprised of C$1,000 principal amount 8.0% senior unsecured convertible debenture (each, a “Convertible 
Debenture”) of the Company and 167 common share purchase warrants of the Company (each, a “Warrant”). Each Warrant entitles the holder to 
purchase one common share of the Company (each, a “Warrant Share”) at an exercise price of C$3.90 per Warrant Share for a period of 24 months 
following the closing of the Offering. 
  
The Company has agreed to use its best efforts to obtain the Receipt and Registration within six months following the closing of the Offering. In the 
event that the Receipt and Registration have not been obtained on or before 5:00 p.m. (PST) on the date that is 120 days following the closing of the 
Offering, each unexercised CD Special Warrant will thereafter entitle the holder thereof to receive, upon the exercise thereof and at no additional 
cost, 1.05 Convertible Debenture Units per CD Special Warrant (instead of 1.0 Convertible Debenture Unit per CD Special Warrant). Until the 
Receipt and Registration have been obtained, securities issued in connection with the Offering (including any underlying securities issued upon 
conversion or exercise thereof) will be subject to a 6-month hold period from the date of issue. 
  
The brokered portion of the Offering (C$2,247,000) was completed by a syndicate of agents (collectively, the “Agents”). The Company paid the 
Agents a cash commission equal to 7.0% of the gross proceeds raised in the first tranche of the brokered portion of the Offering. As additional 
consideration, the Company issued the Agents such number of non-transferable broker convertible debenture special warrants (the “Broker CD 
Special Warrants”) as is equal to 7.0% of the number of CD Special Warrants sold under the first tranche of the brokered portion of the Offering. 
Each Broker CD Special Warrant shall be exchanged, on the same terms as the CD Special Warrants, into broker warrants of the Company (the 
“Broker Warrants”). Each Broker Warrant entitles the holder to acquire one Convertible Debenture Unit at an exercise price of C$1,000, until the 
date that is 24 months from the closing date of the Offering. The distribution of the Broker Warrants issuable upon the exchange of the Broker CD 
Special Warrants shall also be qualified under the Qualification Prospectus and the resale of the common shares underlying the Broker Warrants 
will be registered under the Registration Statement. The Company also paid the lead agent a corporate finance fee equal to C$100,000, payable as to 
C$50,000 in cash and as to $50,000 in common shares of the Company at a price per share of C$3.00. 
  

  
As part of the offering, as of December 31, 2018, the Company had incurred fees of approximately $85,000. The Company valued the warrants 
granted as part of the units using the Black Scholes Merton option pricing model and determined that the value at grant was approximately 
$484,000. The significant assumptions used in the valuation are as follows: 
  

  
The table below shows the net amount outstanding as of December 31, 2018, after unamortized discount and loan fees under the convertible notes: 
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Fair value of underlying common shares   $ 2.10 
Exercise price (converted to USD)   $ 2.925 
Dividend yield     - 
Historical volatility     116.9%
Risk free interest rate     2.60%

Convertible Notes, Net of Discount      
Convertible promissory note   $ 735,000 
Unamortized debt discount and loan fees     (566,363)



  
9. Shareholders’ Equity 
  
In 2016, the Company adopted a plan to allow the Company to compensate prospective and current employees, directors and consultants through 
the issuance of equity instruments of the Company. The plan has an effective life of 10 years. The plan is administered by the board of directors of 
the Company until such time as the board transfers responsibility to a committee of the board. The plan is limited to issuing common shares of the 
Company up to 15% of the total shares then outstanding. No limitations exist on any other instruments issuable under the plan. In the event of a 
change in control of the Company, all unvested instruments issued under the plan become immediately vested. 
  
Preferred shares  
  
The Company has two series of preferred shares designated with no preferred shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2018. 
  
Common shares  
  
On July 13, 2018, a meeting of the stockholders of the Company took place, and the stockholders adopted a resolution authorizing the Board of 
Directors, in its sole discretion, to amend the Company’s Articles of Incorporation to increase the number of authorized shares of Company 
Common Stock from 100,000,000 to 300,000,000. 
  
The holders of common shares are not entitled to receive dividends at this time, however, are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the 
Company. 
  
Common Stock issuances for compensation: 
  
As part of the fees associated with the 10,000 Special Convertible Note Unit offering, the Company agreed to issue the brokers 16,666 shares of its 
common stock. 
  

  
In the three months ended December 31, 2018 the Company entered into several consulting agreements, and as part of these agreements agreed to 
issue a total of 350,000 shares of common stock in payment for consulting services to be provided to the Company over the following 12 months. 
The Company capitalized the amounts to prepaid expense and is amortizing the expense over the period of the respective agreement as part of stock 
based compensation on the statement of operations. Through December 31, 2018, approximately $178,000 was amortized to stock based 
compensation in the statement of operations. 
  
As of December 31, 2018 the Company amended a consulting agreement and agreed to issue a total of 41,667 shares of common stock in payment 
for the continuance of his consulting services provided to the Company over the following 18 months. The Company capitalized the amounts to 
prepaid expense and is amortizing the expense over the period of the agreement. Through December 31, 2018, approximately $30,000 was amortized 
to stock based compensation expense in the statement of operations. 
  
For the quarter ended December 31, 2018, the Company granted 194,233 shares of common stock to certain employees and consultants. The 
Company recorded stock-based compensation for this period in the amount of $388,466 for these issuances which is included as part of stock based 
compensation in the statement of operations. 
  
Option Issuances for compensation: 
  
During the three months ended December 31, 2018, the Company amended a previously issued consulting agreement, and as part of that agreement 
for professional services, agreed to issue a total of 75,000 options to purchase the common stock of the Company with having an exercise price of 
$1.80 per share and a term of 4 years. Pursuant to the agreement, all 75,000 options vested upon issuance. In addition, the agreement reduced the 
exercise price of the previously issued options under the original agreement down to $1.80 per share from the original exercise price of $2.40 per 
share. In total, the Company recorded option-based consulting expense of $144,750 as a result of these options. 
  
The significant assumptions used to value the options granted in the three months ended December 31, 2018 are as follows: 
  

  
Warrants issued for compensation  
  
On December 27, 2018, the Company entered into an Agency Agreement with respect to a private offering of up to 10,000 special warrants of the 
Company (the “CD Special Warrants”) for aggregate gross proceeds of up to $10,000,000 (in Canadian funds, denoted herein as “C”) (the 
“Offering”). As part of the agreement, each Convertible Debenture Unit is comprised of C$1,000 principal amount 8.0% senior unsecured convertible 
debenture (each, a “Convertible Debenture”) of the Company and 167 common share purchase warrants of the Company (each, a “Warrant”). Each 
Warrant entitles the holder to purchase one common share of the Company (each, a “Warrant Share”) at an exercise price of C$3.90 per Warrant 

 Net amount   $ 168,637 
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Fair value of underlying common shares   $ 2.40 
Exercise price   $ 1.80 
Dividend yield     0.0%
Historical volatility     116.90%
Risk free interest rate     2.96%



Share for a period of 24 months following the closing of the Offering. As of December 31, 2018, a total of 2,585 units were sold equivocating to 
431,695 warrants. 
  
In the quarter ended December 31, 2018 the Company issued a consultant a warrant to acquire 50,000 shares of its common stock as part of the 
compensation package within the consulting agreement. The warrant was issued with an exercise price of $2.40 per share and a term of 3 years. 
  
10. Commitments and contingencies  
  
As noted earlier in Note 1, the Company, through entities it invests in and is negotiating to acquire (see below) will be in the near future engaging in 
a business that constitutes an illegal act under the laws of the United States Federal Government. This raises several possible issues which may 
impact the Company’s overall operations, not the least of which are related to traditional banking and other key operational risks. Since cannabis 
remains illegal on the federal level, and most traditional banks are federally insured, those financial institutions will not service cannabis businesses. 
In states where medical or recreational marijuana is legal, dispensary owners, manufacturers, and anybody who “touches the plant”, continue to 
face a host of operational hurdle. While local, state-chartered banks and credit unions now accept cannabis commerce, there remains a reluctance 
by traditional banks to do business with them. Aside from a huge inconvenience and the need to find creative ways to manage financial flow, 
payroll logistics, and payment of taxes, this also poses tremendous risks to controls as a result of operating a lucrative business in cash. This lack 
of access to traditional banking may inhibit industry growth. 
  

  
Despite the uncertainties surrounding the Federal government’s position on legalized marijuana, the Company does not believe these risks will have 
a substantive impact on its planned operations in the near term. 
  
In July 2016, the Company entered into a 10-year lease for a commercial building from an unrelated third party in Springfield, Oregon. At the time the 
original lease was entered into, the Company had expected to close on significant subscriptions from its private placement. However, when those 
did not immediately materialize, the Company entered into an agreement with the landlord to cancel the lease and in addition, paid the landlord 
$15,000 not to rent out the property until such time the Company could enter into a new lease. In September 2016, the Company entered into a new 
10-year lease with the landlord that commenced in November 2016. The lease requires the Company to pay a base rental fee of $7,033 plus an 
additional estimated $315 per month in real estate taxes in which the base rental fee escalates each year by approximately 2%. All taxes (including 
reconciling real estate taxes), maintenance and utilities are included at the end of each year as a one-time payment. In addition, the Company also 
remitted $14,000 for a security deposit to the landlord. No amounts have been recorded for deferred rent in these financial statements as the amount 
was deemed immaterial by the Company. The Company has subleased this space pursuant to a 10-year lease. On February 22, 2018, both parties 
executed a lease addendum that adds contiguous property for 12,322 square feet. The term commences November 1, 2017 and continues through 
November 31, 2026 at a rate of $3,525 a month that escalates after the first year. The Company subleases this property to a related party (see 
disclosures below under “Springfield Suites”). As of December 31, 2018, the total subrental income to be received by the Company over the life of 
the sublease is approximately $8.9 million. 

  
In March 2018, the Company entered into a 3-year lease for the occupancy of the Company’s corporate office located in Boca Raton, Florida. The 
lease requires the Company to pay a base rental fee of $3,024 per month with yearly increases thereafter. All taxes, maintenance and utilities are 
billed separately. 
  
During the three months ended December 31, 2018, the Company incurred total rent expense of $82,564. As of December 31, 2018, the Company has 
recorded a long-term asset for the straight lining of rent under the rental leases to the cannabis operators of approximately $1,766,487. As of the date 
of these financial statements, the Company is in negotiations to acquire the entities that lease its properties (see below). 
  
In August 2016, the Company and certain shareholders of the Company entered into a “Multi Party” Agreement, in which the Company became 
obligated to lease or acquire three separate real estate assets, and separately, if certain events occur, additional real estate assets held by entities 
related to those shareholders. The Agreement also gives the Company the right of first refusal in regard to certain properties owned by the persons 
and entities affiliated with the parties of the Agreement so long as certain targets are met. 
  
Certain shareholders of the Company have organized entities that operate directly in the cannabis industry, and the Company leases its properties 
to these entities. In addition, the Multi Party Agreement has requirements for the purchase of certain properties from the related parties to the 
agreement upon certain milestones being reached (see Note 12). The Multi Party Agreement also requires that in the event that the US Government 
amends Title 21 of the United States Code, otherwise known as the Controlled Substances Act, to remove cannabis as a Schedule I drug, and the 
Company raises more than $10 million in equity and merger funding, the Company is required to enter into agreements to acquire those related 
entities and issue such equity that the shareholders of the related entities obtain 75% of the then issued and outstanding equity of the Company, 
regardless of the profitability or financial condition of the related entities at the time of their acquisition. At the time of these financial statements, 
the Company was in negotiations with these entities to amend the multiparty agreement in order to acquire the Company’s prior to removal of 
cannabis from Schedule 1 of the Act. The Company believes the acquisition of these entities will become probable in the near future in FY 2019. 
  

  
On July 16, 2018, the Company began trading its common stock under the ticker symbol “STEM” on the Canadian Securities Exchange (the “CSE”).  
  
Property Rental Agreements  
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All of the income leases below are to entities that are related to the Company through common ownership. 
  
1027 Willamette 
  
In July 2017, the Company entered into an operating lease agreement with a marijuana dispensary (the “Lessee”) to move into the Company’s 
acquired property located at 1027 Willamette Street in Eugene, Oregon. The lease agreement is for a base term of ten years (see note below) and a 
monthly rent obligation of $13,800, subject to annual increases of 3% per year, plus an amount for additional rent based on final buildout costs 
incurred by the Company. The lease is a double net lease with maintenance and real property taxes to be paid by the Tenant and insurance costs 
paid by the Company. The Company provided the tenant with one month of free rent. 
  
Upon the expiration of the term of ten years, the Lessee has the option to renew the lease agreement for one five-year term, on the same terms as 
provided in the lease agreement. 
  
Springfield 
  
In July 2017, the Company entered into a lease agreement for its property and warehouse building located at 800 N 42nd street in Springfield, 
Oregon. The lease agreement is for a term of ten years (see note below) and a monthly rent obligation of $64,640, subject to annual increases of 3% 
per year plus an amount for additional rent based on final buildout costs incurred by the Company. The lease is a double net lease with maintenance 
and real property taxes to be paid by the Tenant and insurance costs paid by the Company. Rent payments commence on the date the growing 
season ends, which the Company currently estimates will occur in September 2019, and thus expects payments to begin in January 2020. The 
Company has treated this period as a free rental period for accounting purposes. 
  
Upon the expiration of the term of ten years, the Lessee has the option to renew the lease agreement for five-year term, on the same terms as 
provided in the lease agreement. 

  
14336 S. Union Hall Road, Mulino 
  
In July 2017, the Company entered into a lease agreement for its property located at 14336 South Union Hall Road in Mulino, Oregon. The lease 
agreement is for a term of ten years (see note below) and a monthly rent obligation of $18,750, subject to annual increases of 3% per year plus an 
amount for additional rent based on final buildout costs incurred by the Company. The lease is a double net lease with maintenance and real 
property taxes to be paid by the Tenant and insurance costs paid by the Company. Rent payments will begin at the of the first growing season, 
which the Company currently estimates will occur in September 2019, and thus payments will commence in January 2020. The Company expects to 
treat such period as a free rental period for accounting purposes. At the time rental payments begin, the total of base rent and additional rent will 
not be less than $1.00 per foot for light assisted greenhouse and $.25 per usable square foot for un-light assisted greenhouse or outdoor grow 
space. 
  
Upon the expiration of the term of ten years, the Lessee has the option to renew the lease agreement for five-year term, on the same terms as 
provided in the lease agreement. 
  
7827 SE Powell 
  
In July 2017, the Company entered into a lease agreement for its acquired property located at 7827 SE Powell Blvd. in Portland, Oregon. The lease 
agreement is for a term of ten years and a monthly rent obligation of $6,523, subject to annual increases of 3% per year. Maintenance and real 
property taxes to be paid by the Tenant and insurance paid by the Company. Additional rents will be added to pay landlord back for tenant 
improvements by the end of the first term of the lease, payments will include annual interest at 12% compounded monthly. Rent payments 
commence on the date the growing season ends, which the Company currently estimates will occur in May 2019, and thus expects payments to 
begin in September 2019. The Company has treated this period as a free rental period for accounting purposes. 
  
Upon the expiration of the term of ten years, the Lessee has the option to renew the lease agreement for five-year term, on the same terms as 
provided in the lease agreement. 
  
12. Subsequent events 
  
From January 1, 2019 through the date of these financial statements, the Company issued shares of its common stock in satisfaction of 
compensation provisions within certain consulting agreements. 
  

  
ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS. 
  

Forward Looking Statements 
  
This Interim Report on Form 10-Q contains, in addition to historical information, certain forward-looking statements within the meaning of the 
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (“PLSRA”), Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and 
section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) regarding Stem Holdings, Inc. (the “Company” or “Stem”, 
also referred to as “us”, “we” or “our”). Forward-looking statements give our current expectations or forecasts of future events. You can identify 
these statements by the fact that they do not relate strictly to historical or current facts. Forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties. 
Forward-looking statements include statements regarding, among other things, (a) our projected sales, profitability, and cash flows, (b) our growth 
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strategies, (c) anticipated trends in our industries, (d) our future financing plans and (e) our anticipated needs for working capital. They are 
generally identifiable by use of the words “may,” “will,” “should,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “plans,” “potential,” “projects,” “continuing,” 
“ongoing,” “expects,” “management believes,” “we believe,” “we intend” or the negative of these words or other variations on these words or 
comparable terminology. These statements may be found under “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations” and “Description of Business,” as well as in this Form 10-Q generally. In particular, these include statements relating to future actions, 
prospective products or product approvals, future performance or results of current and anticipated products, sales efforts, expenses, the outcome 
of contingencies such as legal proceedings, and financial results. 
  
Any or all of our forward-looking statements in this report may turn out to be inaccurate. They can be affected by inaccurate assumptions we might 
make or by known or unknown risks or uncertainties. Consequently, no forward-looking statement can be guaranteed. Actual future results may 
vary materially as a result of various factors, including, without limitation, the risks outlined under “Risk Factors” detailed in the Company’s Form 
10 registration statement and matters described in this Form 10-Q generally. In light of these risks and uncertainties, there can be no assurance that 
the forward-looking statements contained in this filing will in fact occur. You should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. 
The forward-looking statements speak only as of the date on which they are made, and, except to the extent required by federal securities laws, we 
undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements, whether as the result of new information, future events, or otherwise. 
We intend that all forward-looking statements be subject to the safe harbor provisions of the PSLRA. 
  
For the year ended September 30, 2018, the financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with the standards of the Public 
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). For the three months ended December 31, 2018, the unaudited interim financial statements 
have been prepared by management in accordance with the condensing rules of the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. 
  
OVERVIEW 
  
Stem Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) is a Nevada corporation incorporated on June 7, 2016. The Company purchases, improves, and leases 
properties for use in the cannabis production, distribution and sales industry as well as a cultivator providing cannabis and cannabis-infused 
products licensed under the laws of the states of Oregon, Nevada, Oklahoma, with six current licenses for cultivation, three for production, five for 
processing, one for wholesale and ten dispensary licenses. In addition, the Company also procured a hemp license under the laws of Oregon. As of 
December 31, 2018, the Company has acquired 3 commercial properties and leased a fourth property and has entered into leases to related entities 
for these four properties. 
  
The Company, through its operating subsidiaries (see below), is currently in the process of finalizing the investment in and acquisition of entities 
that engage directly in the production and sale of cannabis, moving from a real estate focused entity with a cannabis niche to a vertically integrated 
cannabis focused entity. 
  

  
The Company’s stock is publicly traded and is listed on the Canadian Securities Exchange under the symbol “STEM” and the OTCQB exchange 
under the symbol “STMH”. 
  
Recent Developments 
  
Under the Obama Administration, the DOJ previously issued memoranda, including the so-called “Cole Memo” on August 29, 2013, providing 
internal guidance to federal prosecutors concerning enforcement of federal cannabis prohibitions under the CSA. This guidance essentially 
characterized use of federal law enforcement resources to prosecute those complying with state laws allowing the use, manufacture and distribution 
of cannabis as an inefficient use of such federal resources when state laws and enforcement efforts are effective with respect to specific federal 
enforcement priorities under the CSA. 
  
On January 4, 2018, U.S. Attorney General Jeff Sessions issued the Sessions Memo, which rescinded the Cole Memo and related internal guidance 
issued by the DOJ regarding federal law enforcement priorities involving marijuana. The Sessions Memo instructs federal prosecutors that when 
determining which marijuana-related activities to prosecute under federal law with the DOJ’s finite resources, prosecutors should follow the well-
established principles set forth in the U.S. Attorneys’ Manual governing all federal prosecutions. The Sessions Memo states that “these principles 
require federal prosecutors deciding which cases to prosecute to weigh all relevant considerations, including federal law enforcement priorities set 
by the Attorney General, the seriousness of the crime, the deterrent effect of criminal prosecution, and the cumulative impact of particular crimes on 
the community.” The Sessions Memo went on to state that given the DOJ’s well-established general principles, “previous nationwide guidance 
specific to marijuana is unnecessary and is rescinded, effective immediately.” 
  
It is unclear at this time what impact the Sessions Memo will have on the medical-use marijuana industry. In addition, pursuant to the current 
omnibus spending bill previously approved by Congress, the DOJ is prohibited from using funds appropriated by Congress to prevent states from 
implementing their medical-use cannabis laws. This provision, however, is currently set to expire on March 23, 2018, and there is no assurance that 
Congress will approve inclusion of a similar prohibition on DOJ spending in the appropriations bill for 2018. Although we are not engaged in the 
purchase, sale, growth, cultivation, harvesting, or processing of medical-use marijuana products, we lease our properties to tenants who engage in 
such activities, and therefore strict enforcement of federal prohibitions regarding marijuana could irreparably harm our business, subject us to 
criminal prosecution and/or adversely affect the trading price of our securities. See “Business—Government Regulation” and “Risk Factors—Risks 
Related to Government Regulation.” 
  
Results of Operations 
  
The following comparative analysis on results of operations was based primarily on the comparative consolidated financial statements, footnotes 
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and related information for the periods identified below and should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and 
the notes to those statements for the year ended September 30, 2018 which were filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 14, 
2019. 
  
Comparison of the results of operations for the quarter ended December 31, 2018 compared to the quarter ended December 31, 2017 
  
Revenues 
  
For the quarters ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, revenue was as follows: 
  

  

  
For the quarter December 31, 2018, total revenues amounted to $337,952 as compared to $309,829 for the quarter ended December 31, 2017, an 
increase of $28,123 or 9.0%. This increase in revenues was primarily comprised of straight lining the rent we expect from our other three leases. 
Under US GAAP, our rental income from the properties is earned on a straight-line basis over the entire expected life of the rent agreement, 
including the free rent period we have provided until each lessor ends its cannabis growing season. As of December 31, 2018, only the Willamette 
Property lessor had begun cash payments under the lease. We expect the remaining three lessors to commence cash payments under their three 
leases after completion of the property buildouts which will estimate will be in March 2019. Should we be successful in acquiring the companies that 
are currently our renters, our revenues will change to those of direct cannabis operations. 
  
Operating expenses 
  

  

  

  
Operating loss 
  
As a result of the factors described above, for the quarters ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, operating loss amounted to $4,019,599, as compared 
to an operating loss of $687,843, an increase of $3,331,756 or 484.4%. 
  
Other income (expenses) 

  

    2018     2017  
             
Revenues   $ 337,952    $ 309,829 
Net (loss)   $ (4,019,599)   $ (687,843)
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share   $ (0.48)   $ (0.10)
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Quarter Ended December 

31, 2018    
Quarter Ended December 

31, 2017  
             
Consulting fees   $ 74,350    $ 55,450 
Professional fees   $ 441,872    $ 140,598 
General and administrative expenses   $ 858,782    $ 432,368 
Stock based compensation   $ 1,600,577    $ 359,546 
               
Total   $ 2,975,581    $ 987,962 

  ● For the quarter ended December 31, 2018, consulting fees increased by $18,900, or 34.1%, as compared to the quarter ended December 31, 
2017 due to an increase in the execution of additional consulting contracts in the area of investor relations.

     
  ● For the quarter ended December 31, 2018, professional fees increased by $301,274, or 214.3%, as compared to the quarter ended December 

31, 2017. The increase was primarily attributable to both legal and accounting fees relative to compliance, acquisitions and our audit. We 
expect these fees to increase as we continue to grow and acquire additional operations in future periods.

     
  ● General and administrative expenses consist of expenses such as rent expense, directors’ and officers’ liability insurance, travel expenses, 

office expenses, telephone and internet expenses and other general operating expenses. For the quarter ended December 31, 2018, general 
and administrative expenses increased by $426,414 or 98.6% as compared to the quarter ended December 31, 2017. These increases were 
primarily attributable to an increase in insurance, depreciation, and salary expense. We expect these fees to increase as we continue to 
grow and acquire additional operations in future periods.

     
  ● During the quarter ended December 31, 2018, we recorded stock-based compensation of $1,600,577 as compared to $359,546 for the 

comparable 2017 period, an increase of $1,241,031 or 345.2%. This increase is due to the hiring of new consultants and additional 
compensation for officers and directors. We expect to continue in the short term of relying on equity to pay for a significant portion of the 
costs of consultants, employees and directors, so that we can concentrate on using our available cash resources to buildout and grow our 
business.
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Other income (expenses) primarily includes interest expense incurred on debt, and also includes other income (expenses). For the quarter ended 
December 31, 2018, total other income, amounted to a net expense of $1,381,970, as compared to total other income of $9,710, representing a change 
of $1,372,360 or 14132.4%. During the quarter ended December 31, 2018, interest expense increased by $548,356 which is attributable to interest only 
mortgages procured in this period. Additionally, Inducement cost incurred was $823,900 as compared to no expense as of the prior period. We do 
not expect at this time for inducement costs to recur, as those costs were associated with our incentive to holders of our then short term, 6 month 
and 12 month convertible notes to convert those notes, as we were in the process of raising funds under our new Unit offering, and we deemed it 
more likely to succeed at the time, should we incentivize the prior convertible note holders to convert their notes. 

  
Net income (loss) 

  
As a result of the foregoing, for the quarters ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, net loss amounted to $4,019,599, or $(0.29) per common share, and 
a net loss of $687,843, or $(0.10) per common share, respectively. 
  
LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL CONDITION 
  
Liquidity and Capital Resources 
  
The Company had cash of $3,794,090 and $2,179,017 as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 respectively. Our primary uses of cash have been for salaries, 
fees paid to third parties for professional services, insurance, general and administrative expenses, and the acquisitions and development of rental 
properties. All funds received have been expended in the furtherance of growing the business. We have received funds from financing activities 
such as from debt financing as well as the proceeds from advances to be contributed from venture. The following trends are reasonably likely to 
result in changes in our liquidity over the near to long term: 
  

  
Subsequent to December 31, 2018, we have not raised an additional funds in our private placements, however have raised C$2,141,000 
(approximately $1.4 mm in USD) in convertible debt financing. Our efforts to raise additional capital are ongoing and we expect to close in the 
following quarters on the remaining approximately C$7 million available under the Unit offering. 
  
We currently have committed that we would need to spend approximately $150,000 thousand on capital expenditures for the expansion and buildout 
of our Mulino, Powell and Springfield properties. These capital expenditures are contingent upon several factors including the Company obtaining 
financing for the development of the properties and the construction of the tenant improvements in such amount and on such terms and provisions 
as are acceptable to the Company. 
  

  
We have used our available funds to fund our operating expenses, pay our obligations, acquire and develop rental properties, and grow our 
company. We need to raise significant additional capital or debt financing to acquire new properties, to develop existing properties, and to assure 
we have sufficient working capital for our ongoing operations and debt obligations. There is no guarantee that such funding will be available to the 
Company at a viable cost, if at all. 
  
Equipment financing 
  
In November 2017, the Company entered into a promissory note in the amount of $21,749 from a vendor of the Company to finance the acquisition 
of a security electronics system in one of its properties. The promissory note bears an interest rate of 18% per annum and also contains a 10% 
servicing fee. The note matures 24 months after issuance and is secured by certain security electronics purchased with proceeds of the note. This 
vendor is currently in a restructuring and is likely to go out of business. As of December 31, 2018, the Company has been notified that the vendor 
holding the note is in bankruptcy and during the quarter ended December 31, 2018, the Company withheld payment under the note. The obligation 
remains outstanding at $14,950 as of December 31, 2018. 
  
Effective April 29, 2018, the Company entered into a 36-month premium finance agreement in consideration for a John Deere Gator Tractor in the 
principal amount of $15,710. The note bears no annual interest rate and requires the Company to make thirty-six monthly payments of $442 over the 
term of the note. As of December 31, 2018, the obligation outstanding is $12,389. No amount was recorded for the premium for the non-interest 
bearing feature of the note as it was immaterial. The note is secured by the equipment financed. 
  
Effective May 29, 2018, the Company entered into a 24-month premium finance agreement in consideration for a MT85 wide track loader in the 
principal amount of $27,844. The note bears no annual interest rate and requires the Company to make 24 monthly payments of $1,160 over the term 
of the note. As of December 31, 2018, the obligation outstanding is $20,883. No amount was recorded for the premium for the non-interest bearing 
feature of the note as it was immaterial. The note is secured by the equipment financed. 
  
Due to related parties 
  
As of December 31, 2018, related parties had advanced cash and equipment, on a due on demand, unsecured and undocumented basis, to the 
Company in the amount of $33,600. 
  

  ● An increase in working capital requirements to finance our current business,
  ● Acquisition and buildout of rental properties;
  ● Addition of administrative and sales personnel as the business grows and
  ● The cost of being a public company.
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Insurance financing 
  
Effective July 31, 2018, the Company entered into a 9-month premium finance agreement in partial consideration for an insurance policy in the 
principal amount of $54,701.55. The note bears an annual interest rate of 7.99% and requires the Company to make nine monthly payments of $4,435 
over the term of the note. As of December 31, 2018, the obligation outstanding is $17,741. 
  
Short term notes and advances 
  
In September 2018, an investor interested in the then ongoing private placement of convertible notes (see below) advanced the Company $168,000 
on an unsecured basis and then entered discussions with Company regarding the form of the note. As of December 31, 2018, the Company and the 
investor had not come to terms and the investor did not agree to the terms of the notes. The Company has treated the amount as an unsecured 
advance, due on demand. As of December 31, 2018 and the date of these financial statements, no demand had been made and the Company 
continues to negotiate with the investor. 
  

  
In November 2018, a board member of the Company and several outside investors provided the Company with approximately $3.493 million in cash 
to be dispensed to an entity being setup by the investors with assistance from the Company, and which has yet to open a checking account, which 
will be primarily owned and controlled by the board member, upon that entity completing its setup and opening up of a checking account. The 
Company is currently treating the amounts tendered as undocumented advances, due on demand and non-interest bearing. The Company expects 
that the new venture will be setup in the near term and has therefore not recorded a premium or discount associated with the funds advanced as 
they would be immaterial. 
  
In connection with the proposed investment in East Coast Packers, LLC (“ECP”), the Company entered into a promissory note in the principal 
amount of $1 million payable to ECP as part of its investment in the LLC. The promissory is payable in five installments commencing upon the 
effective date (the date of grant of license to engage in cannabis operations issuable by the government of the State of Florida), over the course of 1 
year, with an interest rate of 1% per annum for the first six months, then increasing to 5.5% per annum for the remainder of the note period through 
maturity. In the event the LLC is denied the licenses necessary to operate, the note is cancelled in full. 
  
Mortgages payable 
  
On February 28, 2018, the Company executed a $550,000 mortgage payable on the Willamette property to acquire additional funds. The mortgage 
bears interest at 15% per annum. Monthly interest only payments began March 1, 2018 and continue each month thereafter until paid. The entire 
unpaid balance is due on March 1, 2020, the maturity date of the mortgage, and is secured by the underlying property. The Company paid costs of 
approximately $28,000 to close on the mortgage. The mortgage terms do not allow participations by the lender in either the appreciation in the fair 
value of the mortgaged real estate project or the results of operations of the mortgaged real estate project. The note has been cross guaranteed by 
the CEO and Director of the Company. 
  
On April 4, 2018, the Company executed a $314,000 mortgage payable on the Powell property to acquire additional funds. At closing $75,000 of the 
proceeds was put into escrow. The mortgage bears interest at 15% per annum. Monthly interest only payments began May 1, 2018 and continue 
each month thereafter until paid. The entire unpaid balance is due on April 1, 2020, the maturity date of the mortgage, and is secured by the 
underlying property. The Company plaid costs of approximately $19,000 to close on the mortgage. The mortgage terms do not allow participations 
by the lender in either the appreciation in the fair value of the mortgaged real estate project or the results of operations of the mortgaged real estate 
project. The note has been cross guaranteed by the CEO and Director of the Company. 
  
On January 16, 2018 the Company consummated a “Contract for Sale” for a Farm Property in Mulino OR (the “Mulino Property”). The purchase 
price was $1,700,000 which was reduced by a rental credit of approximately $135,000 which is equivalent to nine months’ rent at $15,000 a month and 
an additional credit of $9,500 for additional work done on the property. In connection with the purchase of the property, the Company made a cash 
payment as down payment plus payment of closing costs in the amount of $370,637 and issued a promissory note in the amount of $1,200,000 with a 
maturity of January 2020. The Company will pay monthly installments of principal and interest (at a rate of 2% per annum) in the amount of $13,500, 
commencing in July 2018 through the maturity date (January 2020), at which time the entire unpaid principal balance and any remaining accrued 
interest shall be due and payable in full. No amount was recorded for the premium for the below market rate feature of the note as it was immaterial. 
The note is secured by a deed of trust on the property. The Company performed an analysis and determined that the rate obtained was below 
market, however, no premium was recorded as the Company determined it was immaterial. 
  
On December 27, 2018, the Company entered into an Agency Agreement with respect to a private offering of up to 10,000 special warrants of the 
Company (the “CD Special Warrants”) for aggregate gross proceeds of up to $10,000,000 (in Canadian funds, denoted herein as “C”) (the 
“Offering”). In addition, on December 27, 2018, the Company closed the first tranche of the Offering consisting of 3,121 CD Special Warrants at a 
price of C$1,000 per CD Special Warrant for aggregate gross proceeds of C$3,121,000. 
  
Each CD Special Warrant will be exchanged (with no further action on the part of the holder thereof and for no further consideration) for one 
convertible debenture unit of the Company (a “Convertible Debenture Unit”), on the earlier of: (i) the third business day after the date on which 
both (A) a receipt (the “Receipt”) for a (final) prospectus (the “Qualification Prospectus”) qualifying the distribution of the Convertible Debentures 
(as defined below) and Warrants (as defined below) issuable upon exercise of the CD Special Warrants has been issued by the applicable securities 
regulatory authorities in the Canadian jurisdictions in which purchasers of the CD Special Warrants are resident (the “Canadian Jurisdictions”), and 
(B) a registration statement (the “Registration Statement”) registering the resale of the common shares underlying the Convertible Debentures and 
Warrants has been declared effective by the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Registration”); and (ii) the date that is six months 
following the closing of the Offering. The Company has also provided certain registration rights to purchasers of the CD Special Warrants. 
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Each Convertible Debenture Unit is comprised of C$1,000 principal amount 8.0% senior unsecured convertible debenture (each, a “Convertible 
Debenture”) of the Company and 167 common share purchase warrants of the Company (each, a “Warrant”). Each Warrant entitles the holder to 
purchase one common share of the Company (each, a “Warrant Share”) at an exercise price of C$3.90 per Warrant Share for a period of 24 months 
following the closing of the Offering. 
  
The Company has agreed to use its best efforts to obtain the Receipt and Registration within six months following the closing of the Offering. In the 
event that the Receipt and Registration have not been obtained on or before 5:00 p.m. (PST) on the date that is 120 days following the closing of the 
Offering, each unexercised CD Special Warrant will thereafter entitle the holder thereof to receive, upon the exercise thereof and at no additional 
cost, 1.05 Convertible Debenture Units per CD Special Warrant (instead of 1.0 Convertible Debenture Unit per CD Special Warrant). Until the 
Receipt and Registration have been obtained, securities issued in connection with the Offering (including any underlying securities issued upon 
conversion or exercise thereof) will be subject to a 6-month hold period from the date of issue. 
  
The brokered portion of the Offering (C$2,247,000) was completed by a syndicate of agents (collectively, the “Agents”). The Company paid the 
Agents a cash commission equal to 7.0% of the gross proceeds raised in the first tranche of the brokered portion of the Offering. As additional 
consideration, the Company issued the Agents such number of non-transferable broker convertible debenture special warrants (the “Broker CD 
Special Warrants”) as is equal to 7.0% of the number of CD Special Warrants sold under the first tranche of the brokered portion of the Offering. 
Each Broker CD Special Warrant shall be exchanged, on the same terms as the CD Special Warrants, into broker warrants of the Company (the 
“Broker Warrants”). Each Broker Warrant entitles the holder to acquire one Convertible Debenture Unit at an exercise price of C$1,000, until the 
date that is 24 months from the closing date of the Offering. The distribution of the Broker Warrants issuable upon the exchange of the Broker CD 
Special Warrants shall also be qualified under the Qualification Prospectus and the resale of the common shares underlying the Broker Warrants 
will be registered under the Registration Statement. The Company also paid the lead agent a corporate finance fee equal to C$100,000, payable as to 
C$50,000 in cash and as to $50,000 in common shares of the Company at a price per share of C$3.00. 
  
Cash Flow 

  
For the quarters ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 

  
Net cash flows used in operating activities was $634,961 for the quarter ended December 31, 2018 as compared net cash flow used in operating 
activities to $505,430 for the quarter ended December 31, 2017, a change of $129,531. 

  

  
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
  
Principals of Consolidation  
  
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Stem Holdings, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Stem Group 
Oklahoma, Inc., Stem Holdings Florida, Inc., Stem Holdings Oregon, Inc., Stem Holdings IP, Inc., Opco, LLC, and Stem Agri, LLC. All material 
intercompany accounts, transactions, and profits have been eliminated in consolidation. Our wholly owned subsidiaries had no operations, assets 
or liabilities as of December 31, 2018. 
  
Revenue Recognition  
  
The Company recognizes rental revenue from tenants, including rental abatements, lease incentives and contractual fixed increases attributable to 
operating leases, on a straight-line basis over the term of the related leases when collectability is reasonably assured. 
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● Net cash flow used in operating activities for the quarter ended December 31, 2018 primarily reflected a net loss of $4,019,599 adjusted for 
the add-back of non-cash items consisting of depreciation and amortization of $221,282, stock-based compensation expense of $1,600,575, 
non-cash interest $382,896 and convertible notes inducement expense of $823,900 offset by a change operating assets and liabilities 
consisting of an increase in deferred revenue of $324,152, a decrease in prepaid expenses of $207,012 and net changes in other operating 
liabilities of $473,124.

     
● Net cash flow used in operating activities for the quarter ended December 31, 2017 primarily reflected a net loss of $687,843 adjusted for the 

add-back of non-cash items consisting of depreciation and amortization of $75,688, stock-based compensation expense of $359,546, non-
cash interest $3,854 offset by a change operating assets and liabilities consisting of an increase in deferred revenue of $282,229, a decrease 
in prepaid expenses of $77,658 and net changes in other operating liabilities of $52,104.

     
● Net cash flow used in investing activities for the quarter ended December 31, 2018 amounted to $803,163 and consisted of 467,523 used in 

the development of leased properties including the expansion of rentable space, upgrading irrigation, ventilation, plumbing and electrical 
systems, and the purchase of property and equipment. Additionally, $300,703 was invested into North Las Vegas facility.

     
● Net cash provided by financing activities was $4,470,863 for the quarter ended December 31, 2018 as compared to $2,823,730 for the quarter 

ended December 31, 2017. During the quarter ended December 31, 2018, we received proceeds from an advance from NVDRE of $300,000 
and proceeds of $3,493,055 from Stem Venture Funds. Additionally, convertible debt proceeds of $735,000, note payable proceeds of 
$150,000, and offsets of $121,641 of payment on notes payable and $85,551 incurred for loan fee’s.
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The Company makes estimates of the collectability of its tenant receivables related to base rents, straight-line rent and other revenues. In the 
current fiscal year, the Company began significant rental operations. The Company considers such things as historical bad debts, tenant 
creditworthiness, current economic trends, facility operating performance, lease structure, developments relevant to a tenant’s business, and 
changes in tenants’ payment patterns in its analysis of accounts receivable and its evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful 
accounts. Specifically, for straight-line rent receivables, the Company’s assessment includes an estimation of a tenant’s ability to fulfill its rental 
obligations over the remaining lease term. 
  
Real Estate Acquisition Valuation  
  
All assets acquired and liabilities assumed in an acquisition of real estate are measured at their acquisition date fair values. The acquisition value of 
land, building and improvements are included in real estate investments on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Acquisition pursuit 
costs associated with asset acquisitions are capitalized. The Company has early adopted ASU 2017-01, which clarifies the definition of a business 
with the objective of adding guidance to assist entities with evaluating whether transactions should be accounted for as businesses acquisitions. 
As a result of early adopting ASU 2017-01, real estate acquisitions did not meet the definition of a business combination and were deemed asset 
acquisitions, and the Company therefore capitalized its acquisition pursuit costs associated with these acquisitions. 
  
Use of estimates  
  
The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of 
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Estimates and judgments used are based on management’s 
experience and the assumptions used are believed to be reasonable given the circumstances that exist at the time the financial statements are 
prepared. The significant estimates included in these financial statements are those associated with the assumptions used to value equity 
instruments, valuation of its properties for impairment testing and the deferral of rents. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

  
Carrying value, recoverability and impairment of long-lived assets  
  
The Company follows Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC’) 360 to evaluate its long-lived 
assets with determinate lives. The Company’s long-lived assets, which include property and equipment, are reviewed for impairment whenever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. The Company does not test for 
impairment in the year of acquisition of properties so long as those properties are acquired from unrelated third parties. The Company assesses the 
recoverability of its long-lived assets by comparing the projected undiscounted net cash flows associated with the related long-lived asset or group 
of long-lived assets over their remaining estimated useful lives against their respective carrying amounts. Impairment, if any, is based on the excess 
of the carrying amount over the fair value of those assets. Fair value is generally determined using the assets expected future discounted cash flows 
or market value, if readily determinable. If long- lived assets are determined to be recoverable, but the newly determined remaining estimated useful 
lives are shorter than originally estimated, the net book values of the long-lived assets are depreciated and amortized over the newly determined 
remaining estimated useful lives. 
  
The Company considers the following to be some examples of important indicators that may trigger an impairment review: (i) significant under-
performance or losses of assets relative to expected historical or projected future operating results; (ii) significant changes in the manner or use of 
assets or in the Company’s overall strategy with respect to the manner or use of the acquired assets or changes in the Company’s overall business 
strategy; (iii) significant negative industry or economic trends; (iv) increased competitive pressures; (v) a significant decline in the Company’s 
stock price for a sustained period of time; and (vi) regulatory changes. The Company evaluates assets for potential impairment indicators at least 
annually and more frequently upon the occurrence of such events. 
  
Capitalization of Project Costs  
  
The Company’s policy is to capitalize all costs that are directly identifiable with a specific property, would be capitalized if the Company had already 
acquired the property, and when the property, or an option to acquire the property, is being actively sought after, and either funds are available or 
will likely become available in order to exercise their option. All amounts shown capitalized prior to acquisition of a property are included under the 
caption of Project Costs in the balance sheet. 
  
Property and Equipment  
  
Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and is depreciated using the straight-line method over the assets’ estimated 
useful life as follows: 
  

  
Normal maintenance and repairs for equipment are charged to expense as incurred, while significant improvements are capitalized. 
  

  

 

Buildings 20 years
Leasehold improvements Shorter of term of lease or economic life of improvement
Furniture and equipment 5 years
Signage 5 years
Software and related 5 years
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 
  
Not applicable. 
  
ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 
  
(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures 
  
Our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, after evaluating the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in 
Securities Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(e)) as of the end of the quarterly period covered by this report, have concluded that our disclosure controls 
and procedures are not effective to reasonably ensure that material information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit 
under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission’s Rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive 
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. The principal basis for this conclusion is 
the lack of segregation of duties within our financial function and the lack of an operating Audit Committee. 
  
(b) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
  
There have not been any changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) under the 
Exchange Act) during the fiscal period to which this report relates that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the 
Company’s internal control over financial reporting. 
  

  
PART II. OTHER INFORMATION 

  
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 
  
None. 
  
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS 
  
Smaller reporting companies are not required to provide the information required by this item. 
  
ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS 
  
The following table sets forth all securities issued by Stem since between October 1, 2018 and February 15, 2019: 
  

  
ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES 
  
None. 
  
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES 
  
Not applicable. 
  
ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION 
  
None. 
  
ITEM 6. EXHIBITS 
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    Security   No. Shares  

           
Services   Common Stock     890,000 
Compensation   Common Stock     209,895 
Debt Conversion   Common Stock     1,236,113 
Deposit for Acquisition   Common Stock     2,576,197 
Transaction Fees   Common Stock     16,666 
            
Total         4,928,871 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit No.   Description
     
31.1/31.2   Certification of Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule15d- 14(a) of the 

Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
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EXHIBIT 31.1 

  
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 

SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350) 

  
I, Adam Berk, certify that: 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  
  

  1. I have reviewed this Form 10-Q for the period ended December 31, 2018 of Stem Holdings, Inc.;
     
  2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to 

make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the 
period covered by this report;

     
  3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 

respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
     
  4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

  a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us 
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

     
  b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under 

our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

     
  c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions 

about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such 
evaluation; and

     
  d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s 

most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is 
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

  5. I have disclosed, based on my most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit 
committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): 

  a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are 
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

     
  b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s 

internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 19, 2019  
   
/s/ Adam Berk  
Adam Berk  
Principal Executive Officer  

   



  

  

  
SIGNATURES 

  
In accordance with the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the 
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 
  

  

  

32.1/32.2   Certification of Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

101.INS   XBRL Instance Document
     
101.SCH   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
     
101.PRE   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
     
101.CAL   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
     
101.LAB   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
     
101.DEF   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
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  STEM HOLDINGS, INC.
     
February 19, 2019 By:/s/ Adam Berk
    Adam Berk, President and Chief  

Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 31.2 

  
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 

SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350) 

  
I, Steve Hubbard, certify that: 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  
  

  1. I have reviewed this Form 10-Q for the period ended December 31, 2018 of Stem Holdings, Inc.;
     
  2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to 

make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the 
period covered by this report;

     
  3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 

respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
     
  4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

  a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us 
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

     
  b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under 

our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

     
  c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions 

about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such 
evaluation; and

     
  d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s 

most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is 
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

  5. I have disclosed, based on my most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit 
committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): 

  a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are 
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

     
  b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s 

internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 19, 2019  
   
/s/ Steve Hubbard  
Steve Hubbard  
Principal Financial Officer  

   



  
EXHIBIT 32.1 

  
CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO 

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350) 

  
Pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of section 1350, chapter 63 of title 18, United States Code), the 
undersigned officer of Stem Holdings, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the “Company”), does hereby certify, to such officer’s knowledge, that: 

  
The quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period ended December 31, 2018 (the “Form 10-Q”) of the Company fully complies with the requirements 
of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and the information contained in the Form 10-Q fairly presents, in all material 
respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company. 

  

  
A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to STEM HOLDINGS, INC. and will be retained by STEM 
HOLDINGS, INC. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request. 
  

  
  

Date: February 19, 2019  
   
  /s/ Adam Berk
  Adam Berk
  Principal Executive Officer

   



  
EXHIBIT 32.2 

  
CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO 

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350) 

  
Pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of section 1350, chapter 63 of title 18, United States Code), the 
undersigned officer of Stem Holdings, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the “Company”), does hereby certify, to such officer’s knowledge, that: 

  
The quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period ended December 31, 2018 (the “Form 10-Q”) of the Company fully complies with the requirements 
of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and the information contained in the Form 10-Q fairly presents, in all material 
respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company. 

  

  
A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to STEM HOLDINGS, INC. and will be retained by STEM 
HOLDINGS, INC. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request. 
  

  
  

Date: February 19, 2019  
   
  /s/ Steve Hubbard
  Steve Hubbard
  Principal Financial and Accounting Officer

     


